
i 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 

EAST HAMPSHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL, PENNS PLACE, 
PETERSFIELD, HAMPSHIRE GU31 4EX 

 
Telephone:  01730 266551 

Website:  www.easthants.gov.uk 
 

PLANNING COMMITTEE AGENDA 
 

Date: Thursday, 9 January 2020 

Time: 6.00 pm 

Venue: Council Chamber, Penns Place, Petersfield, GU31 4EX 

 
 

 
Membership:      Councillor S Pond (Chairman) 
 
Councillors A Williams (Vice-Chairman), D Ashcroft, F Cowper, D Evans, 
A Glass, S Hunt, C Louisson, P Langley, S Schillemore, N Taylor, I Thomas 
and E Woodard 
 
Reserves: 
 
Councillors K Budden, S Burns, K Carter, M Johnson and T Maroney 
 

(THE QUORUM FOR THIS MEETING IS 7 VOTING COUNCILLORS) 
 

 
 
The business to be transacted is set out below:  
 
David Brown 
Monitoring Officer 
 
 
Date of Publication: Monday 23 December 2019 
 
Contact Officer: Lisa Papps 01730 234073 
 Email:  lisa.papps@easthants.gov.uk 
 

 

Working in Partnership 



ii 
 

 

  Page Nos 

  
 

1 - 8 

1.  Apologies for Absence   
 

 

2.  Confirmation of Minutes   
 
Please note that it is helpful if Councillors could give advance notice, 
to Democratic Services, of any questions they wish to raise in respect 
of the Minutes. 
 
Minutes of the meetings held on 14 November 2019 and 10 
December 2019, circulated under separate cover. 
 

 

3.  Chairman's Announcements   
 

 

4.  Declarations of Interest   
 
Councillors are reminded of their responsibility to declare any 
disclosable pecuniary interest which they may have in any item of 
business on the agenda no later than when that item is reached.  
Unless dispensation has been granted, you may not participate in any 
discussion of, or vote on, or discharge any function related to any 
matter in which you have a pecuniary interest as defined by 
regulations made by the Secretary of State under the Localism Act 
2011.  You must withdraw from the room or chamber when the 
meeting discusses and votes on the matter. 
 

 

 

Matters for Decision 
 

 
 

5.  Acceptance of Supplementary Matters   
 

 

6.  Future Items   
 

9 - 10 

7.  Report of the Director of Regeneration and Place   
 

 

 

PART 1 - East Hampshire District Council Items 
 

 
 

 

Section I 
 

 
 

7.(i)   21068/045/VOC/SAW - Alton Sports Centre, Chawton Park Road, 
Alton, GU34 1ST   
Sports and Leisure Management Limited 
 
Variation of Conditions 1, 2, 3, 8 & 9 of planning permission 
21068/041 - Revised external finishes, landscaping, parking and 
substitution of plans. [Amended plans received 7.10.19 /  24.10.19 / 
31.10.19 and 4.12.19 detailing a modified cycle and pedestrian 

11 - 24 



iii 
 

access ramp from Chawton Park Road, revisions to the parking layout 
and a garden to the spa facility] 
 

 

Section II 
 

 
 

 

PART 2 - South Downs National Park Items 
 

 
 

 

Section I 
 

 
 

8.(i)   SDNP/19/01538/FUL - Churchers College, Ramshill, Petersfield   
Churchers College 
 
Reinforced grass mesh system to provide temporary school parking 
for the College during the construction phase of the Goodfield Centre 
project (Ref: SDNP/18/04293/FUL) and as a permanent 'over flow' 
parking space thereafter (further information received). 
 

25 - 44 

 

Section II 
 

 
 

 



iv 
 

 
  
 



 

 
v 

  Page Nos 

GENERAL INFORMATION 
 

IF YOU WOULD LIKE A VERSION OF THIS AGENDA, OR 
ANY OF ITS REPORTS, IN LARGE PRINT, BRAILLE, 
AUDIO OR IN ANOTHER LANGUAGE PLEASE CONTACT 
DEMOCRATIC SERVICES ON 01730 234073. 
 
 

Internet 
 

This agenda and its accompanying reports can also be found on the East 
Hampshire District Council website: www.easthants.gov.uk 
 
 

Public Attendance and Participation 
 

Members of the public are welcome to attend and observe the meetings. 
Many of the Council’s meetings allow the public to make deputations on 
matters included in the agenda. Rules govern this procedure and for further 
information please get in touch with the contact officer for this agenda.  
 
Disabled Access 
 

All meeting venues have full access and facilities for the disabled. 
 

Emergency Procedure 
 
Please ensure that you are familiar with the location of all emergency exits 
which are clearly marked. In the unlikely event of an emergency an alarm will 
sound. 
 
PLEASE EVACUATE THE BUILDING IMMEDIATELY. 
 
DO NOT RE-ENTER THE BUILDING UNTIL AUTHORISED TO DO SO. 
 
No Smoking Policy 
 

All meeting venues operate a no smoking policy on all premises and grounds 
 

http://www.easthants.gov.uk/


This page is intentionally left blank



 

PLANNING COMMITTEE 

1. INTRODUCTION 

1.1. This report considers planning applications submitted to the Council, as the Local 
Planning Authority, for determination.  It may also include items which are being 
determined by the Council on behalf of the South Downs National Park Authority. 

East Hampshire District Council is acting as an agent for the South Downs National 
Park Authority in accordance with an agreement signed under Section 101 of the Town 
and Country Planning Act 1990.  Under this arrangement the Council can determine 
planning applications on sites within the South Downs National Park area of the district 
on behalf of the National Park Authority.  Applications for the South Downs National 
Park are prefixed with the letters SDNP.  

2.1. SECTIONS IN THE REPORT 

The report is divided into two main parts;  

Part 1 – East Hampshire District Council 

This part of the report considers applications and related planning matters which are 
being determined or considered by the Council as the Local Planning Authority.   

Part 2 – South Downs National Park Authority 

This part of the report considers applications and related planning matters which fall 
within East Hampshire District’s area of the South Downs National Park and which the 
Council is determining or considering on behalf of the South Downs National Park 
Authority.   

Each part of the report is split into two sections:   

Section 1 - Schedule of Application Recommendations  

This Section deals with planning applications that have been received by the Council 
and which require the Planning Committee to make a decision to grant or refuse 
permission.  Each item contains a full description of the proposed development, details 
of the consultations undertaken and summary of the responses received, an 
assessment of the proposal against current policy, a commentary and concludes with 
a recommendation.  A presentation with slides will be made to Committee.  Public 
participation is allowed on Section 1 items. 

Section 2 – Other matters  

This Section deals with other planning matters which are not the subject of a current 
application or are current applications which have already been determined and have 
been subject to a committee resolution to grant or refuse.  

Page 1

Agenda Annex



 

No formal presentation will be made to Committee, unless required, and there will be 
no public participation.” 

2.2. All information, advice, and recommendations contained in this report are understood 
to be correct at the time of publication, which is more than one week in advance of the 
Committee meeting.  Because of the time constraints, some reports may have been 
prepared in advance of the final date for consultee responses or neighbour comment.  
Where a recommendation is either altered or substantially amended between 
preparing the report and the Committee meeting or where additional information has 
been received, a separate Supplementary Matters paper will be circulated at the 
meeting to assist Councillors.  This paper will be available to members of the public. 

3. PLANNING POLICY 

3.1. All planning applications must be determined in accordance with the development plan, 
unless material considerations indicate otherwise (Section 38(6) of the Town and 
Compulsory Purchase Act 2004).  If the development plan contains material policies 
or proposals and there are no other material considerations, the application should be 
determined in accordance with the development plan.  Where there are other material 
considerations, the development plan will be the starting point, and other material 
considerations will also be taken into account.  One such consideration will be whether 
the plan policies are relevant and up to date.  The relevant development plans are the 
Hampshire Minerals and Waste Plan, The East Hampshire District Joint Core Strategy 
2014, the East Hampshire District Local Plan: Housing and Employment Allocations 
2016 and the saved policies in the East Hampshire District Local Plan: Second Review 
2006.  The Development Plan also includes made neighbourhood Plans. 

3.2. Although not necessarily specifically referred to in the Committee report, the relevant 
development plan will have been used as a background document and the relevant 
policies taken into account in the preparation of the report on each item.   

3.3. The East Hampshire District Joint Core Strategy and Local Plan have policies that 
contain criteria that must be met if a particular form of development is to be allowed.  
Paragraph 2 of the National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) February  2019 states:  
“Planning law requires that applications for planning permission be determined in 
accordance with the development plan unless material considerations indicate 
otherwise.”   

3.4. The Council may sometimes decide to grant planning permission for development that 
departs from a development plan if other material considerations indicate that it should 
proceed.  One of these material considerations is whether the plan is up-to-date in 
terms of housing delivery.  

4. OTHER MATERIAL CONSIDERATIONS  

4.1. Material considerations must be genuine planning considerations, i.e. they must be 
related to the development and use of land in the public interest.  They must also fairly 
and reasonably relate to the application concerned.  The Courts are the arbiters of 
what constitutes a material consideration.  All the fundamental factors involved in land-
use planning are included, such as the number, size, layout, siting, design, and 
external appearance of buildings and the proposed means of access, together with 

Page 2



 

landscaping, impact on the neighbourhood, and the availability of infrastructure.   

4.2. Matters that should not be taken into account are: 

 loss of property value  loss of view 
 land and boundary disputes  matters covered by leases or covenants 
 the impact of construction 

work 
 property maintenance issues 

 need for development (save in 
certain defined circumstances) 

 the identity or personal characteristics of 
the applicant 

 competition between firms,   or matters that are dealt with by other 
legislation, such as the Building 
Regulations (e.g. structural safety, fire 
risks, means of escape in the event of 
fire etc). - The fact that a development 
may conflict with other legislation is not 
a reason to refuse planning permission 
or defer a decision.  It is the applicant’s 
responsibility to ensure compliance with 
all relevant legislation. 

 

4.3. Government statements of planning policy are material considerations that must be 
taken into account in deciding planning applications.  These statements cannot make 
irrelevant any matter that is a material consideration in a particular case.  Nevertheless, 
where such statements indicate the weight that should be given to relevant 
considerations, decision-makers must have proper regard to them.   

4.4. In those cases where the development plan is not relevant, for example because there 
are no relevant policies, the planning application should be determined on its merits in 
the light of all the material considerations.  

5. PLANNING CONDITIONS AND OBLIGATIONS  

5.1. The Council can impose conditions on planning permissions only where there is a clear 
land-use planning justification for doing so.  Conditions should be used in a way that is 
clearly seen to be fair, reasonable, and practicable.  One key test of whether a 
particular condition is necessary is if planning permission would have to be refused if 
the condition were not imposed.  Otherwise, such a condition would need special and 
precise justification.  

 

5.2. Where it is not possible to include matters that are necessary for a development to 
proceed in a planning condition the Council can agree a planning obligation under 
Section 106 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990.  Planning obligations should 
meet the Secretary of State's policy tests.  They should be:  
 necessary; 
 relevant to planning; 
 directly related to the proposed development; 
 fairly and reasonably related in scale and kind to the proposed development; and 

Page 3



 

 reasonable in all other respects. 

 

5.3. The use of planning obligations is governed by the fundamental principle that planning 
permission may not be bought or sold.  It is therefore not legitimate for unacceptable 
development to be permitted because of benefits or inducements offered by a 
developer, which are not necessary to make the development acceptable in planning 
terms.  Planning obligations are only a material consideration to be taken into account 
when deciding whether to grant planning permission, and it is for the Council to decide 
what weight should be attached to a particular material consideration.  

6. PLANNING APPEALS  

Applicants have the right of appeal to the Secretary of State if an application is refused, or 
granted subject to conditions, or if it has not been determined within the specified period.  
Appeals are administered by the Planning Inspectorate - an executive agency reporting to 
the Secretary of State.  Appeals are considered by written representation, hearings, and 
public inquiries.  In planning appeals, it is normally expected that both parties will pay their 
own costs.  Costs can however, be awarded against the Council where it: 
 

(a) fails to determine a planning application in good time – the Council must have good 
planning reasons to explain and justify why it did not make a decision in time. 

(b) fails to carry out adequate prior investigation consistent with national policy and 
guidance. 

(c) prevents or delays development that should clearly be permitted having regard to 
the development plan, national policy statements and any other material 
considerations.  It is the Councils responsibility to produce evidence to show clearly, 
why the development cannot be permitted. Reasons for refusal must be 

 complete,  
 precise,  
 specific 
 relevant to the application, and 
 supported by substantiated evidence.  

(d) fails to show reasonable planning grounds for taking a decision contrary to officer 
advice  

(e) gives too much weight to neighbour objections - the extent of local opposition is not, 
in itself, a reasonable ground for resisting development. To carry significant weight, 
opposition should be founded on valid planning reasons that is supported by 
substantial evidence. 

(f) relies on unsubstantiated objections where they include valid reasons for refusal but 
rely almost exclusively on local opposition from third parties, through 
representations and attendance at an inquiry or hearing, to support the decision. 

(g) fails to show that it has considered the possibility of imposing relevant planning 
conditions to allow development to proceed. 

 
The following are examples given in Planning Practice Guidance of circumstances that 
may lead to an award of costs against the Council: 
(a) ignoring relevant national policy – for example, the advice in NPPF, 
(b) where a proposal is contrary to the development plan but the relevant policy has 

been superseded by national policy which advocates an entirely different approach.  

Page 4



 

An example might be ignoring national advice in paragraph 77 of NPPF which may 
allow some market housing to bring forward a rural affordable housing exception 
site, 

(c) acting contrary to, or not following, well-established case law, 
(d) persisting in objections to a scheme, or part of a scheme, which has already been 

granted planning permission or which the Secretary of State or an Inspector has 
previously indicated to be acceptable, 

(e) not determining like cases in a like manner – for example, imposing an additional 
reason for refusal on a similar scheme to one previously considered by the planning 
authority where circumstances have not materially changed, 

(f) failing to grant a further planning permission for a scheme the subject of an extant 
or recently expired permission where there has been no material change in 
circumstances, 

(g) refusing to approve reserved matters when the objections relate to issues that 
should already have been considered at the outline stage, 

(h) imposing a condition that is not necessary, precise, enforceable, relevant to 
planning, relevant to the development permitted or reasonable and thereby does 
not comply with the advice in the Planning Practice Guidance on the use of 
conditions in planning permissions, 

(i) requiring the appellant to enter into or complete a planning obligation which does 
not accord with the tests in para 56 of the NPPF, or 

(j) not imposing conditions on a grant of planning permission where conditions could 
effectively have overcome the objection identified – for example, in relation to 
highway matters. 

 

7. THE SECRETARY OF STATE'S ROLE 

7.1 The Secretary of State has reserve powers to direct the council to refer an application 
to him/her for decision. This is what is meant by a 'called-in' application. In general, 
this power of intervention is used selectively and the Secretary of State will not interfere 
with the jurisdiction of local planning authorities unless it is necessary to do so.  The 
Planning Practice Guidance sets out the type of development proposals that directs 
local authorities to consult with the Secretary of State before granting planning 
permission. 

 

8. PROPRIETY 

8.1 Councillors are elected to represent the interests of the whole community in planning 
matters and not simply their individual Wards.  When determining planning applications 
they must take into account planning considerations only.  This can include views 
expressed on relevant planning matters.  Local opposition or support for a proposal is 
not in itself a ground for refusing or granting planning permission, unless it is founded 
upon valid planning reasons.  

9. PRIVATE INTERESTS  

9.1 The planning system does not exist to protect the private interests of one person 
against the activities of another, although private interests may coincide with the public 

Page 5



 

interest in some cases.  It can be difficult to distinguish between public and private 
interests, but this may be necessary on occasion.  The basic question is not whether 
owners and occupiers of neighbouring properties would experience financial or other 
loss from a particular development, but whether the proposal would unacceptably 
affect amenities and the existing use of land and buildings that ought to be protected 
in the public interest. Covenants or the maintenance/protection of private property are 
therefore not material planning consideration. 

10. OTHER LEGISLATION  

10.1 Non-planning legislation may place statutory requirements on planning authorities, or 
may set out controls that need to be taken into account (for example, environmental 
legislation, or water resources legislation).  The Council, in exercising its functions, 
also must have regard to the general requirements of other legislation, in particular:  

 The Race Relations (Amendment) Act 2000, which prevents discrimination 
directly or indirectly in any functions, carried out by public authorities.  

 The Equality Act 2010, which places a duty on all those responsible for providing 
a service to the public not to discriminate against disabled people by providing a 
lower standard of service.  

 The Human Rights Act 1998, which incorporated provisions of the European 
Convention on Human Rights (ECHR) into UK law.  The general purpose of the 
ECHR is to protect human rights and fundamental freedoms and to maintain and 
promote the ideals and values of a democratic society.  It sets out the basic rights 
of every person together with the limitations placed on these rights in order to 
protect the rights of others and of the wider community.  The specific Articles of 
the ECHR relevant to planning include Article 6 (Right to a fair and public hearing), 
Article 8 (Right to respect for private and family life, home and correspondence), 
Article 14 (Prohibition of discrimination) and Article 1 of Protocol 1 (Right to 
peaceful enjoyment of possessions and protection of property).  All planning 
applications are assessed to make sure that the subsequent determination of the 
development proposal is compatible with the Act.  If there is a potential conflict, 
this will be highlighted in the report on the relevant item. 
 

11. PUBLIC SPEAKING 

11.1 The Council has adopted a scheme for the public to speak on all Section 1 items. 
Where public speaking is allowed, the applicant or their representative, the local 
Parish/Town Council, and one objector may address the Committee, for a maximum 
of three minutes each, by prior invitation.  Members of the public wishing to speak must 
have contacted the Meeting Administrator in Democratic Services at least 48 hours 
before the meeting.  It is not possible to arrange to speak to the Committee at the 
Committee meeting itself. 

11.2 For probity reasons associated with advance disclosure of information under the 
Access to Information Act, neither the applicant, Parish Council, nor an objector will be 
allowed to circulate, show or display further material at, or just before, the Committee 
meeting.   

 

Page 6



 

12.  INSPECTION OF DRAWINGS 

12.1 All drawings are available for inspection on the internet at www.easthants.gov.uk and 
at the Planning Development Reception area during our normal office hours.  The files 
and drawings will also be available 30 minutes prior to the start of meeting for 
Councillors to inspect. 

13. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 

13.1 There are no direct financial implications arising from this report.  However, in the event 
of an appeal, further resources will be put towards defending the Council’s decision.  
Rarely and in certain circumstances, decisions on planning applications may result in 
the Council facing an application for costs arising from a planning appeal.  Officers will 
aim to alert Members where this may be likely and provide appropriate advice in such 
circumstances. 

 
Simon Jenkins 
Director of Regeneration and Place 
 
Background Papers: 
 
 the individual planning application file (reference quoted in each case) 
 the Hampshire Minerals and Waste Plan 2013 
 East Hampshire Joint Core Strategy 2014 
 East Hampshire Employment & Housing allocations Plan 2016 
 East Hampshire District Local Plan: Second Review 2006 - Saved Policies 
 Adopted Neighbourhood Plans: Alton, Bentley, Medstead & Four Marks, Ropley, 

Petersfield, Liss, and East Meon 
 Government advice and guidance contained in circulars, National Planning Policy 

Framework, Planning Practice Guidance and ministerial statements 
 any other document specifically referred to in the report. 

Page 7

http://www.easthats.gov.uk/


This page is intentionally left blank



 
PLANNING COMMITTEE 

 
9 January 2020 

 
POSSIBLE FUTURE ITEMS FOR COMMITTEE / SITE VISIT 

 
The following items are for INFORMATION purposes only.  They comprise major 
applications that have either been submitted some time ago but are still not yet ready for 
consideration or are recently received applications that are not ready to be considered by 
the Committee or determined under the Scheme of Delegation.  The purpose of this report 
is to highlight the receipt of these applications to ensure that any issues that they raise are 
highlighted at an early stage.  Councillors may also suggest possible future site visits 
under this item. 
 

 Reference Description and Address 

1  
56420/001 
 
 
 
 

 
Retirement living apartments with communal facilities and car 
parking following demolition of existing buildings  
 
Alton Magistrates Court, 25 Normandy Street, Alton, 
GU34 1DQ 
 
This application has only just recently been submitted and 
consultations and notifications are under way.  It is too early 
to make any decision as to how this application will be 
determined. 

 

Page 9



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 11



 

PART 1 

 
 

EAST HAMPSHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 

PLANNING COMMITTEE 
REPORT OF THE DIRECTOR OF REGENERATION AND PLACE 

 

Applications to be determined by the 
Council as the Local Planning Authority 

 
9 January 2020 

 

SECTION 1 – SCHEDULE OF APPLICATION RECOMMENDATIONS  
 

 
Item No.: 01  
 

The information, recommendations, and advice contained in this report are correct as at the 
date of preparation, which is more than one week in advance of the Committee meeting. 
Because of the time constraints some reports may have been prepared in advance of the final 
date given for consultee responses or neighbour comments.  Any changes or necessary 
updates to the report will be made orally at the Committee meeting. 

 

PROPOSAL Variation of Conditions 1, 2, 3, 8 & 9 of planning permission 
21068/041 - Revised external finishes, landscaping, parking and 
substitution of plans. [Amended plans received 7.10.19 /  24.10.19 / 
31.10.19 and 4.12.19 detailing a modified cycle and pedestrian 
access ramp from Chawton Park Road, revisions to the parking 
layout and a garden to the spa facility] 

LOCATION: Alton Sports Centre, Chawton Park Road, Alton, GU34 1ST 

REFERENCE : 21068/045 PARISH:Alton 

APPLICANT:  Sports and Leisure Management Limited 

CONSULTATION EXPIRY : 29 October 2019 

APPLICATION EXPIRY : 12 November 2019 

COUNCILLOR: Councillor G Boxall 

SUMMARY RECOMMENDATION: PERMISSION 

 

Page 12



The application is reported to the Planning Committee for determination as it involves 
development on land owned by East Hampshire District Council. 
 
Site and Development 
 
Site 
 
Alton Sports Centre is an East Hampshire District Council owned sports facility located on the 
south-eastern side of Chawton Park Road, Alton around 1.5km to the west of the town centre. 
It is operated by Sports and Leisure Management (the applicant) on behalf of the Council.  
The site extends to an area of approximately 3.29 hectares and is occupied by a principal 
sports centre building constructed in 1973, which is of two storey scale and constructed of 
profiled metal sheet above a blockwork ground floor base.  A floodlit artificial sports pitch is 
located to the north-east of the sports centre.  The facility is served via a main car parking 
area to the south-east, which is linked to the centre via a bridge that crosses over an internal 
access road.  Further parking areas are located around the perimeter of the site.  Ground 
levels rise across the site to the south-east, with the sports centre and pitches being raised 
above the level of Chawton Park Road.  
 
The sports centre is located on the south-western edge of Alton, with established residential 
development in Connaught Way / Florence Way to the north, adjacent to Alton Community 
Hospital, with further housing to the north-east along Chawton Park Road and Winstreet 
Close.  Alton Cardiac Rehabilitation Centre is located adjacent to the north-eastern site 
boundary, with Alton Bowling Club and a Girl Guide HQ beyond.  Alton Tennis Club is located 
adjacent to the north-eastern corner of the site.  A terrace of eight residential dwellings in 
Gurdons are sited to the south-east of the Sports Centre, with the Mid Hampshire Heritage 
Railway beyond.  Jubilee Playing Fields and associated sports pavilion border the site to the 
west. 
 
The majority of the site is shown to be within the Settlement Policy Boundary (SPB) for Alton, 
with only the car parking area to the north of Jubilee Playing Fields outside the SPB.  Jubilee 
Playing Fields itself falls within the Alton / Chawton Local Gap.  The Butts Conservation Area 
is situated in the Butts Road / Whitedown Lane area, around 500 metres to the north-east of 
the site.  The boundary to the South Downs National Park is located on the southern side of 
the A31 approximately 300 metres to the south of the site.  A Grade II listed store building 
associated with the Lord Treloars Museum is located on the northern side of Chawton Park 
Road opposite to the sports centre building.  The site is within the area covered by the Alton 
Neighbourhood Plan. 
 
Planning permission was granted in March 2018 for the redevelopment of the sports centre to 
provide a new facility and works on this new centre are nearing completion.  A condition of the 
planning permission is that the current sports centre is kept open until the new centre is 
completed, which will then be demolished to provide a replacement sports pitch and 
additional car parking.  
 
 

Page 13



Development 
 
The application seeks a variation to several conditions attached to the reserved matters 
permission, to allow amendments to the scheme.  These amendments show the following 
changes: 

 Condition 1 (External Materials): revisions to the colours and finishes of the cladding to 
the building. 

 Condition 2 (Hard and Soft Landscaping): Revisions to the site layout, including 
removal of pedestrian bridge and modifications to the cycle / pedestrian access ramp 
from Chawton Park Road and provision of a "garden" area to the spa facility. 

 Condition 4 (Vehicle Parking): Revisions to the parking layout to show a net gain of 11 
spaces. 

 Condition 8 (Artificial Grass Pitches): Enlarged run-off space as agreed with 
Hampshire FA. 

 Condition 9 (Approved Plans): Update drawing list to reflect the above changes. 
 
During the course of the application, amended plans have been submitted to address 
concerns raised by consultees.  These include revisions to the cycle / pedestrian ramp to 
address comments made by the Local Highway Authority and also revisions to the parking 
layout to address comments made by the Cardiac Rehabilitation Unit.  In addition, an addition 
plan was submitted to provide a "garden" area for users of the spa facility. 
 
Relevant Planning History 
 

21068/040 Outline application all matters reserved - Construction 
of replacement sports centre (Use Class D2) up to 
8,500 sqm gross external floor area together with 
parking structure and other car parking (up to 250 
spaces); Construction of outdoor floodlit, fenced 
synthetic turf pitches; vehicular, pedestrian and cycle 
routes; landscaping, including tree planting and 
sustainable urban drainage.  Earthworks, 
implementation of appropriate remediation works and 
felling of trees following demolition of the existing 
sports centre building; removal of the existing synthetic 
sports pitches, floodlighting and fencing. 

Outline permission – 
2 September 2015 

21068/041 Approval of reserved matters pursuant to outline 
permission 21068/040 - Replacement sports centre 
(Use Class D2) up to 8,500 sqm gross external floor 
area together with parking structure and other car 
parking (up to 250 spaces); Construction of outdoor 
floodlit, fenced synthetic turf pitches; vehicular, 
pedestrian and cycle routes; landscaping, including 
tree planting and sustainable urban drainage.  
Earthworks, implementation of appropriate remediation 
works and felling of trees following demolition of the 

Approval – 
9 March 2018 

Page 14



existing sports centre building; removal of the existing 
synthetic sports pitches, floodlighting and fencing. 

21068/043 2.4m hoarding (part solid, part Heras fencing) and 
access gate around Phase 1 construction area at new 
Alton Leisure Centre to enable archaeology works (as 
required by pre commencement conditions 7 and 8) to 
be undertaken. (Amended plans and supplementary 
information received 20 December 2017 and 4 January 
2018). 

Temporary 
permission –  
5 January 2018 

 
 
Development Plan Policies and Proposals 
 
The Draft version of the Local Plan (2017 -2036) was published under Regulation 18 of the 
Town and Country Planning (Local Planning) (England) Regulations (2012) for public 
consultation from 5 February to 19 March 2019. Paragraph 48 of the NPPF (2019) sets out 
the circumstances when emerging planning policies may be given weight in determining 
planning applications. Based on the current early stage of preparation, the draft Local Plan 
policies are currently afforded no weight.  
 
East Hampshire District Local Plan: Joint Core Strategy (2014) 
 
CP1 -  Presumption in favour of sustainable development  
CP2 -  Spatial Strategy 

CP8 -  Town and village facilities and services 

CP16 -  Protection and provision of social infrastructure 

CP19 -  Development in the countryside 

CP20 -  Landscape 

CP21 -  Biodiversity 

CP24 -  Sustainable construction 

CP25 -  Flood Risk 

CP27 -  Pollution 

CP29 -  Design 

CP31 -  Transport 
 

East Hampshire District Local Plan: Second Review (2006) 
 

HC3 - Public Services, Community, Cultural, Leisure and Sports Facilities 

C6 - Tree Preservation 
 

Alton Neighbourhood Plan (2016) 
 

DE2 – Building Design and Town Character 
CH2 – Sports Centre 

TR3 – Cycle Storage and Parking 

TR5 – Parking Provision and Standards 
 

Page 15



Vehicle Parking Standards SPD July 2018 

 
Planning Policy Constraints and Guidance 
 
National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) June 2019. 
 
In this instance the following sections of the NPPF are considered to be particularly relevant 
to the consideration of the development; 
 
 2. Achieving sustainable development  
 4. Decision-making   
 8. Promoting healthy and safe communities  
 9. Promoting sustainable transport  
12. Achieving well-designed places  
15. Conserving and enhancing the natural environment  
 
Consultations and Town/Parish Council comments 
 
EHDC Arboricultural Officer - No objection. 
 
EHDC Landscape Officer – Agrees to the landscape alterations. 
 
EHDC Sports Development – Confirm that the revisions to the artificial sports pitches are 
acceptable. 
 
EHDC Traffic Management Team – Request details of the cycle parking layout. 
[Officer note: these details are secured under condition 4 of the Reserved Matters permission, 
and an application for the discharge of these details is currently under consideration] 
 
ESSO Pipeline Management – No comments received. 
 
HCC Highway Authority – Confirmed that the amended details for the cycleway and 
pedestrian access ramp are acceptable, therefore, has no objection to the variation of the 
condition.  
 
HCC Rights of Way – No comments received. 
 
Alton Town Council – No objection. 
 
Chawton Parish Council – No comments received. 
 
Representations 
 
3 letters of representation have been received from third parties (including the Cardiac 
Rehabilitation Unit and Alton Tennis Club) which object to the proposal on the following 
grounds as summarised below; 

Page 16



 The parking plans should maximise the parking potential for clients of the CRU, with 
the revision implying there are more such spaces available. 

 25 spaces exist for the CRU, the plans show 25 spaces inside and 13 outside the 
barrier. 

 The loading bay should be removed and converted to parking spaces. 

 An extra space created on the verge at “triangle 1” 

 The extra spaces next to the spa entrance should be available for general parking. 

 Out of hours use of the loading bay is defined. 

 Workmen should park at the Jubilee Fields pavilion during construction. 

 The surface of the car park and access road should be made good following 
construction 

 Provision should be made for pedestrians who are walking to the Cardiac Rehab 
centre from Chawton Park Road 

 The agreed changes to Alton Tennis Club, including the new layout, tarmac and 
barriers have been dropped from the proposals. 

 
 
Determining Issues 
 
1. Principle of development 
2. Proposed amendments to the approved development 
3. Other matters 
 
Planning Considerations  
 
1. Principle of development. 
 
The principle for this development has been established under outline planning permission 
(21068/040) and the approval of Reserved Matters (21068/041).  This application seeks minor 
revisions to the details of the approved development to reflect amendments which were 
required during the construction process, with associated variations to the relevant conditions 
of the reserved matters permission.  None of these revisions alter the principle of the 
development and each will be considered in detail in the sections below. 
 
2. Proposed amendments to the approved development. 
 
Condition 1 (External Materials) requires the development to be constructed in accordance 
with the materials specified within the approved details, unless details of other suitable 
materials are otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority. 
 
The application seeks to amend the approved detailing of the colours and finishes to the 
building, as shown on the elevational drawings (101 Rev C) and the materials samples board 
(030 Rev D).  These amendments include minor revisions to the glazing modules, an increase 
in the extent of the timber cladding, modification to the composite cladding specifications and 
additional louvres / vents. 
 

Page 17



The amendments are minor in nature, are in keeping with the character and appearance of 
the approved building and would be visually acceptable within the street scene.  Overall the 
building is nearing completion and has been constructed to a high standard, which will 
provide a modern and enhanced facility for the local community. 
 
Condition 2 (Hard and Soft Landscaping) requires that all hard and soft landscape works are 
carried out in accordance with the approved details in the first planting season after practical 
completion or first occupation of the development, unless otherwise first agreed in writing by 
the Local Planning Authority.   
 
The application seeks revisions to the approved site layout and hard / soft landscaping details 
which include the removal of the existing pedestrian bridge across Gurdons to the sports 
centre (see drawing 101 B), with new pedestrian link from the southern parking area.  In 
addition, modifications to the approved pedestrian access ramp from Chawton Park Road are 
proposed to allow its combined use with cycles (see drawing 106 Rev D), which is welcomed.  
It is also noted that the footway / cycle link would connect to a footway around the north-
eastern side of the building allowing direct pedestrian access to the Cardiac Rehabilitation 
Unit and the spa from Chawton Park Road.  Removal of the existing bridge, which is of a poor 
utilitarian design, would result in an enhancement to the local area. 
 
In addition, a small sitting out garden area enclosed by a 2.14 metre high brick wall is shown 
to be provided adjacent to the spa reception, which would provide an enhanced amenity area 
for users of this facility. 
 
The Council’s Arboricultural Officer and Landscape Officer have no objection to the proposed 
revisions to the layout / landscaping.  Following revisions to the access ramp from Chawton 
Park Road to address concerns about the gradient and inclusion of a barrier, the Local 
Highway Authority has confirmed that the revisions are acceptable. 
 
Condition 4 (Vehicle Parking) restricts the occupation of the building until the areas shown on 
the approved plans for the parking of vehicles have been made available, surfaced and 
marked out in accordance with the approved details.  
 
The application seeks to amend the approved parking layout plans with revised drawing 024 
Rev F detailing the parking layout for the sports centre site, and drawing 103 Rev C showing 
modifications to the parking for the Cardiac Rehabilitation Unit.   
 
Revisions to the parking layout, as originally submitted, showed an overall increase in the 
number of spaces from 233 to 238, a net gain of 5 spaces.  The plan includes the provision of 
4 electric vehicle charging points, 12 accessible parking bays, 7 parent and children bays, 2 
mobility drop off points and 20 cycle parking spaces.  A separate drawing shows the layout for 
the Cardiac Rehabilitation Unit (CRU), which shows the provision of 25 spaces including 4 
accessible spaces as well as 6 cycle parking spaces.  Following discussions with the CRU, an 
amended parking layout was submitted which showed a loading bay area replaced with an 
additional 6 parking spaces, on the basis that this area would only be used for loading out-of-
hours, thus could be used for customer parking at other times.   

Page 18



This has resulted in the provision of an additional 6 spaces in the vicinity of the CRU, and an 
overall gain of 11 spaces in total for the site. 
 
Hampshire County Council has no objection to the proposed revisions.  It is noted that the 
Council’s Traffic Management Team has requested details of the cycle parking, the details for 
which would be agreed through the discharge of Condition 4 of the Reserved Matters 
permission.   
 
The CRU has welcomed the replacement of the loading bay with additional parking within 
their car parking area.  The applicant has confirmed that the spaces within the sports centre 
site itself would not be allocated, thus would be available for general use.  Making good of the 
access road and car parking areas would be undertaken once construction has been 
completed, to prevent any damage to the surface from construction traffic.  Parking for 
construction traffic is being undertaken in accordance with the agreed management plan and 
construction workers do not park within the CRU parking area. 
 
Alton Tennis Club has objected to the proposal on the grounds that the agreed revisions to 
their parking area have now been removed.   The applicant has confirmed that no changes 
would be made to the car parking area for the tennis club and that this area has not been 
altered by the development, thus would remain as existing.  There is an existing height barrier 
at the entrance, with no requirement to install automatic barriers, as requested by the club.  It 
would be for the tennis club to manage their own car parking arrangements, as per the pre-
development situation. 
 
Condition 8 (Artificial Grass Pitches) requires the agreement of details and specifications for 
the design and construction of the 3G pitches.   
 
At present, no details have been provided to discharge the requirements of this condition.  
The drawings show the amended layout show an enlarged run-off area around the pitches, 
which has been agreed with Hampshire FA.  The Council’s Sports Officer has also confirmed 
that these amendments are acceptable.  Since the full specifications for the 3G pitches are 
yet to be agreed, the wording of this condition should remain as previously set out, the layout 
amendments being specified within the approved drawings condition. 
 
Condition 9 (Approved Plans) is a standard condition which lists the approved drawings.  The 
applicant is seeking that this condition is varied to list the revised drawing numbers, which 
detail the amendments discussed above. 
 
To conclude, it is considered that all the revisions detailed above are acceptable and in terms 
of the matters relating to: the external appearance, scale, layout, landscaping and means of 
access are all considered to be acceptable, 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 19



Response to Parish/Town Council Comments 
 
Alton Town Council has no objection to the proposed development.  
 
Chawton Parish Council (neighbouring parish) has not commented on the application. 
 
Conclusion 
 
The principle of this development has previously been established with the grant of both 
outline and reserved matters planning permissions.  The application seeks to vary the 
conditions attached to the reserved matters permission to allow minor amendments to the 
approved scheme.  The scale of the amendments does not alter the principle of this 
development.   
 
It is considered that the amendments to the scheme in relation to the reserved matters 
relating to: the external appearance, scale, layout, landscaping and means of access are all 
considered to be acceptable.  Therefore, it is advised that the proposal is in full conformity 
with the provisions of the development plan. 
 
RECOMMENDATION   
 
 PERMISSION subject to the following conditions: 
 
 
1 The development hereby permitted shall be constructed in accordance 

with the materials specified within the approved details, unless details of 
other suitable materials are otherwise agreed in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority. 
Reason - To ensure that a harmonious visual relationship is achieved 
between the new and the existing developments. 
 

2 All hard and soft landscape works shall be carried out in accordance with 
the approved details and in accordance with the recommendations of the 
appropriate British Standards or other recognised codes of good practice.  
These works shall be carried out in the first planting season after 
practical completion or first occupation of the development, 
whichever is earlier, unless otherwise first agreed in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority.  Any trees or plants which, within a period of 5 years 
after planting, are removed, die or become seriously damaged or 
defective, shall be replaced as soon as is reasonably practicable with 
others of species, size and number as originally approved unless a 
suitable alternative species are otherwise agreed in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority. 
Reason - To ensure the provision and establishment of a reasonable 
standard of landscape in accordance with the approved designs. 
 
 

Page 20



3 The development hereby permitted shall not be brought first brought into 
use until the areas shown on the approved plans for the parking of 
vehicles have been made available, surfaced and marked out in 
accordance with the approved details.  The parking areas shall then be 
permanently retained and reserved for that purpose at all times. 
Reason - To make satisfactory provision for off street parking for the 
purpose of highway safety. 
 

4 No part of the development hereby approved shall be occupied until bin 
and cycle storage facilities have been constructed in accordance with the 
details approved on drawing numbers: A-09-004 Rev B (Proposed 
external works) and 1 (FalcoSpan: 4,340mm x 2,220mm).  The agreed 
facilities shall be retained to the agreed specifications and kept available 
for use thereafter. 
Reason - To ensure the adequate provision of on-site bin and cycle 
storage facilities. 
 

5 The development hereby approved shall not be brought into use until 
details of internal directional signage within the site has been submitted 
to, and agreed in writing by, the Local Planning Authority.  The agreed 
signs shall be installed prior to the approved building being first brought 
into use. 
Reason – To ensure appropriate signage is made within the site in the 
interests of highway safety. 
 

6 Development shall be undertaken in accordance with the details 
contained within the updated Preliminary Ecological Appraisal (AECOM, 
August 2017). 
Reason – In the interests of ecology. 
 

7 Construction of the development shall be carried out in accordance with 
the details contained within the Construction Method Statement, agreed 
by the Local Planning Authority on the 18 June 2018. 
Reason – To ensure that construction of the development does not have 
a significant adverse impact on the amenity of the locality. 
 

8 No construction works on the 3G artificial grass pitches shall take place 
until full details and specifications for the design and construction of these 
pitches have been submitted to, and agreed in writing by, the Local 
Planning Authority.  Development shall take place in accordance with 
details. 
Reason - To ensure that the construction of the replacement artificial 
sports pitches is to an acceptable standard. 
 

9 The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance 
with the following approved plans and particulars: 
 

Page 21



Application form 
Supporting Statement 
Drg no. A-PL-001 - Location Plan 
Drg no. A-PL-005 Rev E - Demolition and Tree Removal 
Drg no. A-PL-013 Rev F - Site Levels 
Drg no. A-PL-021 Rev F - Fire Tender Tracking 
Drg no. A-PL-022 Rev F - Delivery Vehicle and Ambulance Tracking 
Drg no. A-PL-024 Rev F - Proposed Parking 
Drg no. A-PL-030 Rev D - Materials Sample Board 
Drg no. A-PL-100 Rev E - Proposed Site Plan 
Drg no. A-PL-101 Rev B - Proposed Pedestrian Link (removal of bridge) 
Drg no. A-PL-103 Rev C - CRU Parking Modifications 
Drg no. A-PL-104 Rev C - Substation Access Levels and Kerbs 
Drg no. A-PL-106 Rev D - Cycle and Pedestrian Ramp 
Drg no. A-PL-108  - Retaining Wall Details at 3G Pitch 
Drg no. A-PL-109 - Spa Garden 
Drg no. A-PL-110 Rev C - Proposed Elevations  
Drg no. A-PL-111 Rev A - Proposed Roof Plan 
 
 
Reason - To ensure provision of a satisfactory development 
 

 
 

Informative Notes to Applicant: 
 
 

1 In accordance with paragraphs 38 and 39 of the NPPF East Hampshire 
District Council (EHDC) takes a positive and proactive approach and 
works with applicants/agents on development proposals in a manner 
focused on solutions by: 

 offering a pre-application advice service, 

 updating applicant/agents of any issues that may arise in the 
processing of their application and where possible suggesting 
solutions. 

 
In this instance: 

 the applicant was provided with pre-application advice, 

 the applicant was updated of any issues after the initial site visit, 

 revisions to the application were made during the course of the 
application. 

 
 

2 A Groundwater Risk Management Permit from Thames Water will be 
required for discharging groundwater into a public sewer. Any discharge 
made without a permit is deemed illegal and may result in prosecution 
under the provisions of the Water Industry Act 1991. 

Page 22



We would expect the developer to demonstrate what measures he will 
undertake to minimise groundwater discharges into the public sewer.  
Permit enquiries should be directed to Thames Water’s Risk 
Management Team by telephoning 02035779483 or by emailing 
wwqriskmanagement@thameswater.co.uk. Application forms should be 
completed on line via www.thameswater.co.uk/wastewaterquality.” 
 
 

3 Restricted Byway 506 should be kept open and free of obstruction 
throughout the construction period.  Hampshire County Council (Rights of 
Way) has advised that if there is likely to be an effect on the right of way 
in terms of dust, noise or other obstruction during the period of the works, 
then it is advised that a Health and Safety Risk Assessment be carried 
out.  If there is deemed to be a risk to users of the right of way, the 
applicant should contact the County Council directly to discuss the 
Temporary Closure of the route for the duration of the works. 
 
 

4 Hampshire County Council, as Highway Authority for Public Rights of 
Way , has advised that there must be no surface alterations to the right of 
way, nor any works carried out which affect its surface, without first 
seeking their permission.  You are advised that to carry out any such 
works without this permission would constitute an offence under S131 
Highways Act 1980, and therefore you are encouraged to contact 
Hampshire County Council to discuss any works of this nature, including: 

 Nothing connected with the development or its future use should 
have an adverse effect on the right of way, which must remain 
available for public use at all times. 

 No builders or contractors vehicles, machinery, equipment, 
materials, scaffolding or anything associated with the works should 
be left on or near the footpath so as to obstruct, hinder or provide 
a hazard to walkers. 

 Any damage caused to the surface of the public right of way by 
construction traffic will be required to be restored to the 
satisfaction of the Rights of Way Officer, to not less than its 
minimum width, on the completion of the build. 

 
 

 

CASE OFFICER: Stephen Wiltshire 01730 234229 
——————————————————————————————————————— 

 

Page 23



SECTION 1  Item 1,  Alton Sports Centre, Chawton Park Road, Alton, GU34 1ST 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

Proposed site plan 

Page 24



 

  

Page 25



 

PART 2 
 
 

SOUTH DOWNS NATIONAL PARK AUTHORITY 
 

PLANNING COMMITTEE 
REPORT OF THE DIRECTOR OF REGENERATION AND PLACE  

 
Applications to be determined by the council on behalf  

of the South Downs National Park Authority 
 

 
9 January 2020 

 
SECTION 1 – SCHEDULE OF APPLICATION RECOMMENDATIONS  
 

 

Item 01 

 

Report to Planning Committee 

Date 9 January 2020 

By Director of Planning 

Local Authority East Hampshire District Council 

Application Number SDNP/19/01538/FUL 

Applicant Mr David Robbins 

Application 

Reinforced grass mesh system to provide temporary school 
parking for the College during the construction phase of the 
Goodfield Centre project (Ref: SDNP/18/04293/FUL) and as a 
permanent 'over flow' parking space thereafter (further 
information received. 16/05/19, 21/05/19 including amended 
plan and 23/05/19, 07/06/19) (parking management plan rec. 
05/08/19) 

Address 
Churchers College, Ramshill, Petersfield, GU31 4AS 

 

Recommendation: That the application be Approved for the reasons and subject 
to the conditions set out in paragraph 10 of this report. 

 

 

Page 26



 

Executive Summary 

This application is included on the agenda at the request of Councillor McKinney due to the 
concerns raised by local residents with particular regard to highway implications. 

 

1. Site Description 
 
The Churcher's College senior school is an established school located on the southern side of 
Ramshill in Petersfield. The school is situated within the Settlement Policy Boundary of 
Petersfield, the South Downs National Park and within the Petersfield Neighbourhood Plan 
area. 

 

2.  Proposal 

Permission is sought for a reinforced grass mesh system (TERRAM Bodpave85 System: 
Green or similar). The purpose of this would be to firstly provide temporary school parking for 
the College during the construction phase of the Goodfield Centre project (a building granted 
permission under SDNP/18/04293/FUL), and secondly, to provide a permanent parking area 
thereafter. At Churchers College the site is known as 'over-flow', but further information 
submitted has demonstrated that there would be no net increase in the number of car parking 
spaces across the site due to reconfiguration of the site parking provision. 
 
The proposal is sited toward the south-western corner of the site, on an existing grassed area 
of field. The proposal is for a grass reinforcement mesh over an area of 25 metres at the 
widest point, 46 metres at the deepest point to provide 38 car parking spaces.  
 
This area is currently used for parking, but can only be used seasonally, due to water 
saturation of the field. In August / September a temporary mesh was put down, due to delays 
with this application.  
 
Additional information was received during the course of the application as follows: 
 
o 16/05/19 -  Further information relating to drainage, neighbours, highways and Sports 

England concerns 
o 21/05/19 -  Response to Case Officer questions, amended plan showing two-way traffic flow 

(instead of one way exiting to Love Lane) for proposed plan 
o 23/05/19 -  Further information received regarding Sports England concerns including a 

topographical survey, and an amended drainage plan of proposed drainage 
strategy 

o 07/06/19 -  Further information received regarding highways concerns 
o 05/08/19 -  Parking Management Plan received 
o 25/11/19 -  Information received with proposed planting to satisfy policy SD2, and 

photographs of current field (showing saturation) 
 
 
 
 

Page 27



 

3. Relevant Planning History 
 
SDNP/19/01571/FUL -  Temporary structure to accommodate two classrooms and one 

workshop. Classrooms and workshop will accommodate facilities to 
function as a Design & Technology department during the demolition 
and rebuilding of new facilities. This application looks to seek a 
temporary approval for the duration of the construction period 
(expected to be limited to a maximum of 2 years). - Permission 2019 

SDNP/18/04293/FUL -  Demolition of existing two storey Music department and single storey 
Design & Technology department and replace with new two storey 
combined Music, Design & Technology and English department and 
associated supporting facilities - Permission 2018 

SDNP/18/04006/FUL -  Portable music rooms for five years - Permission 2018 
SDNP/18/01456/FUL -  Extension of existing tennis and netball court footprint with associated 

ground level changes and retaining wall - Refused 2018 
SDNP/15/02907/FUL -  Relocation of modular portakabins and provision of new portakabins - 

Temporary Permission 2015 

SDNP/13/06044/FUL -  Improved cricket net practice and multi use warm up area adjacent to 
all weather pitch - Permission 2014 

 

4. Consultations  
 
Parish Council Consultee - Members agree in principle but object to the egress on to Love 
Lane and support the Highways comments to this application. Members would like a condition 
added that egress from this site on to Love Lane should not be a routine one. 
 
Sport England - South East Region - Objection withdrawn - Further information has been 
received including a topographical survey of the playing field area affected by the proposed 
parking. Although Sports England do not consider that the gradients shown on the survey 
render this area of playing field unusable. However, given the existing pitch layout and use of 
the playing field for a full range of sports, Sport England does not consider there is a 
detrimental impact on the overall sporting capability of the site. We are satisfied that this has 
been sufficiently demonstrated by the applicant. Sport England also notes that the proposal 
will improve accessibility to the playing field and sports facilities on site. Sports England is 
content to withdraw its holding objection as the proposal is broadly capable of meeting its E2 
and E3 exemption policies. 
 
EH - Drainage - Following further information / amended details, no objection. 
 
HCC - East Hants Highways - Parking Management Plan has been received. No objection 
subject to parking management plan to be secured by condition. 
 
HCC - Ecology Group - No ecological concerns. 
 
EH - Landscape Officer - No landscape objection, subject to maintenance of the existing 
hedge planting on the western site boundary. 

Page 28



 

 
EH -Traffic Management Team - No adverse comment. 
 
EH - Arboricultural Officer - South - No objection. An informative that there must be no 
dumping, storing or mixing of materials in proximity to trees to be retained is requested 
 
 
5.  Representations 
 
66 objections have been received. The following concerns have been raised: 
 
1. Querying that details/application are misleading  

a.  The mesh should be removed when works are completed [Officer note: it is intended 
that it would be permanent] 

b. It is misleading that parking area is described as 'overflow' - it would be permanent 
c. How would gate be controlled? Marshalled? Signed? 
d. Has the site been inspected itself? [Officer note: a site visit has been carried out] 
e. Confirmation should be sought that the usual daily route to exit the car park would 

be via Ramshill gate both during construction and afterwards 
f.  The description should be clear if parking is 'general parking' rather than just 'event' 

parking 
g.  The scope of alterations / intentions is more than application suggests - proposal 

affects traffic going in and out of Love Lane from Churchers gate 
h. The pre-application submission did not reference traffic flow changes 
i.  Concern that previous application was misleading with regards to vehicle 

movements [Officer note: this application cannot remedy issues with traffic regarding 
the previous application] 

 
2. Traffic / highways concerns - 

a.  Concern that intent is to use Love Lane access as more long-term permanent 
access / exit, and that this is inappropriate  

b.  Churchers College Love Lane access was previously pedestrian access only 
c.  Danger / lack of safety for pedestrians, cyclists, schoolchildren (especially at school 

start & finish times) and other users (e.g. community centre, nurseries, football club, 
emergency services) with potential intensification of Love Lane gate access. Large 
number of Herne Junior School children walk along Love Lane to and from footpath 
beyond to school. Risk of injury / accidents / collisions. 

d. Lack of visibility from Love Lane access, blind corner 
e. Love Lane gate access is on the pavement / footpath side of Love Lane thus making 

it more dangerous for pedestrians 
f.  Love Lane is narrow (less than 2 cars width), dangerous and often congested, 

unsuitable for increased volume of traffic, inability to manoeuvre safely 
g. Traffic already can build back as far as one way system, the stationary traffic is then 

a hazard for vehicles approaching down Ramshill and along Tor Way. 
h. Permanent signage would be inefficient (sandwich-board style signs would be more 

effective) 

Page 29



 

i.  Want confirmation that a parking management plan would be agreed prior to 
'reinforced mesh' being installed as it would be in use for whole Goodfield Centre 
build [Officer note: this has been received during the course of the application] 

j.  Traffic flow is already an issue, increased traffic will make it difficult to get in and out 
of Love Lane including ambulances from ambulance station 

k.  Vehicular users already disregard speed limits 
l.  Churchers six formers already drive unsafely along Love Lane, and occupy most of 

the parking spaces there 
m. If allowed, due attention should be given to improving the infrastructure e.g. 

widening road, banning parking along it - to allow safe use. 
 

3. Construction traffic 
 

a. Construction traffic is unsuitable for using the Love Lane Access  
b. Applicants need to make it explicit how contractors and building materials would 

access and exit the site 
c. How would gate access be enforced? 
d. Love Lane gate being used for construction traffic [Officer note: this application 

cannot control the traffic movements related to the construction traffic for a previous 
application] 

 
4. Contesting the existing use of Love Lane access 
 

a. That it was originally only pedestrian 
b. That it has only ever been used very lightly 
c. That it is normally padlocked 
 

5.  The mesh has been installed before permission is granted [Officer note: a temporary 
mesh has been installed which does not need permission. This application is for a more 
permanent mesh which also includes drainage solutions. All other works undergoing have 
been considered by the Planning Compliance team] 

6.  Churchers should be encouraging public transport and being more environmentally 
friendly. Proposal would encourage vehicular traffic and discourage walking / cycling, thus 
also exacerbating traffic levels within the town (e.g. Herne School parents would drive 
their children instead of letting them walk to school) 

7.  Noise from increased traffic 
8.  Pollution from extra vehicles 
9.  Proposal would make it difficult for children to walk unaccompanied to school, which 

would reduce child activity/exercise levels, be detrimental to the children's development 
and independence 

10. Proposal would not benefit the community 
11. Water supply - stop cocks outside of gate, vehicles passing over these stop cocks would 

interrupt water supplies 
12.  Lack of security for Churchers through permanent opening of Love Lane gate - theft, 

damage 
13. Drainage - road is already prone to flooding 
14. Damage to natural environment from the mesh 
15. Loss of sports playing fields 

Page 30



 

16. People should park elsewhere for Churchers events - there is ample parking in town 
17. Would create undesirable precedent for 'concreting' over fields to create parking. 
 
 
6.  Planning Policy Context 
 
Applications must be determined in accordance with the Development Plan unless material 
considerations indicate otherwise. The statutory development plan in this area is the South 
Downs Local Plan 2014-2033 and any relevant minerals and waste plans.  
 
The development plan policies and other material considerations considered relevant to this 
application are set out in section 7, below. 
 
National Park Purposes 
 
The two statutory purposes of the SDNP designation are: 
 

 To conserve and enhance the natural beauty, wildlife and cultural heritage,  

 To promote opportunities for the public understanding and enjoyment of the special 
qualities of their areas. 
 

If there is a conflict between these two purposes, conservation takes precedence. There is 
also a duty to foster the economic and social well being of the local community in pursuit of 
these purposes.  
 
 
7. Planning Policy  
 
Relevant Government Planning Policy and Guidance  
Government policy relating to National Parks is set out in English National Parks and the 
Broads: UK Government Vision and Circular 2010 and The National Planning Policy 
Framework (NPPF), updated February 2019. The Circular and NPPF confirm that National 
Parks have the highest status of protection, and the NPPF states at paragraph 172 that great 
weight should be given to conserving and enhancing landscape and scenic beauty in national 
parks and that the conservation and enhancement of wildlife and cultural heritage are also 
important considerations and should be given great weight in National Parks. 
 
National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF)  
The following National Planning Policy Framework documents have been considered in the 
assessment of this application:  
 
8. Promoting healthy and safe communities (in particular, paragraph 97) 
9. Promoting sustainable transport 
11. Making effective use of land 
12. Achieving well-designed places 
 

Page 31



 

The development plan policies listed below have been assessed for their compliance with the 
NPPF and are considered to be compliant with the NPPF. 
 
 

The following policies of the South Downs Local Plan are relevant to this application: 

 Core Policy SD1 - Sustainable Development 

 Core Policy SD2 - Ecosystems Services 

 Strategic Policy SD4 - Landscape Character 

 Strategic Policy SD5 - Design 

 Development Management Policy SD11 - Trees, Woodland and Hedgerows 

 Strategic Policy SD19 - Transport and Accessibility 

 Development Management Policy SD22 - Parking Provision 

 Development Management Policy SD43 - New and Existing Community Facilities 

 Strategic Policy SD49 - Flood Risk Management 

 Development Management Policy SD50 - Sustainable Drainage Systems 

 
The following policies of the Petersfield Neighbourhood Plan (2015) are relevant to this 
application: 
 

o Policy BEP6: The Settlement Boundary 
o Community Policy 1 (CP1) Maintain and enhance existing Community and 
  Education Facilities 

 

Partnership Management Plan 

The South Downs Partnership Management Plan (SDPMP) was adopted on 3 December 
2013. It sets out a Vision and long term Outcomes for the National Park, as well as 5 year 
Policies and a continually updated Delivery Framework. The SDPMP is a material 
consideration in planning applications following adoption of the SDNP Local Plan.  

 

8. Planning Assessment 

 

Determining Issues 

1. Principle of development 
2. Impact on the amenity of neighbouring properties 
3. Design and Landscape Impact 
4. Impact on sports provision  
5. Highways Implications 
6. Drainage Implications 
7. Impact on the South Downs National Park 

Page 32



 

 1. Principle of development 

 
Policy SD25 of the Local Plan states a presumption in favour of development. Development 
within settlement policy boundaries (SPB) will be supported provided that development 'is of a 
scale and nature appropriate to the character and function of the settlement in its landscape 
context, makes best use of suitable and available previously developed land in the settlement 
and makes efficient and appropriate use of the land'. 
 
The application site lies within the Settlement Policy Boundary (SPB) of Petersfield as 
identified within the Neighbourhood Plan and Community Policy 1 of the Petersfield 
Neighbourhood Plan support development proposals that result in the improvement of 
educational facilities, in accordance with the Development Plan when read and any other 
relevant material considerations. 
 
Policy SD43 of the Local Plan relates to new and existing community facilities which includes 
education. Criterion 1, states that 'development proposals for new and/or expanded 
community facility infrastructure will be permitted where: they demonstrate a local need, the 
scale of the proposed infrastructure is proportionate to the local area, there has been prior 
local community engagement, they are accessible and inclusive to the local communities they 
serve and appropriate consideration has been given to the shared use, re-use and/or 
redevelopment of existing buildings in the host community'.  
 
The proposal relates to the function of the school in terms of parking provision, and also 
assists in enabling of the 'Goodfield project' building (planning reference 
SDNP/18/04293/FUL), which is the improvement of the design & technology, English and 
music facilities. As such, the development of new educational facilities within the SPB is 
accepted in principle. 
 
 
2. Impact on the amenity of neighbouring properties 
 
Policy SD5 criterion (k) requires development to 'have regard to avoiding harmful impact 
upon, or from, any surrounding uses and amenities'. Paragraph 17 of the NPPF amongst 
other core principles, requires development to provide a good level of amenity for all new and 
existing occupants of land and buildings. 
 
The nature of the development is such that it would not impact on the available light, privacy 
or amenity of neighbouring properties. The concern raised by residents regarding the traffic 
flow will be addressed separately in section 5 of this report. 
 
If granted permission, it is recommended that the details of any lighting proposed for the 
development be submitted to the Local Planning Authority for approval, to ensure no adverse 
impact to the neighbouring properties in terms of light, as well as considering protection of the 
Dark Night Skies commodity of the National Park. 
 
 
 

Page 33



 

 
3. Design and Landscape Impact 
 
Policy SD5 of the Local Plan requires development to be of a sensitive and high quality 
design that makes a positive contribution to the overall character and appearance of the area. 
Policy SD5 criterion (c) requires development to 'contribute to local distinctiveness and sense 
of place through its relationship to adjoining buildings, spaces and landscape features 
including historic settlement pattern'. 
 
Policy SD4 of the Local Plan relates to landscape character. It states that 'development 
proposals will only be permitted where they conserve and enhance the landscape character'. 
Development should be informed by landscape character reflecting the context and type of 
landscape in which the development is located as well as the design, layout and scale of 
proposals conserving and enhancing existing landscape and character features that 
contribute to the distinctive character, pattern and evolution of the landscape.' 
 
The proposal is to utilise an area of field, for parking at any time of the year. The area has 
been used on an intermittent basis for overflow parking, dependent on weather, albeit there is 
currently a temporary mesh down for parking. The application proposes a mesh system such 
that grass would be able to grow through, and the proposed colour of mesh, being green 
would blend with the grass.  
 
The Council's Landscape Officer raises no objection subject to maintenance of the existing 
hedge on the western side boundary of the site. It is recommended that the retention of this 
hedgerow is secured through a condition. For these reasons the visual impact of the 
development within the local area is considered to be acceptable. 
 
4. Impact on Sports Provision 
 
The National Planning Policy Framework states in paragraph 97 that playing fields should not 
be built on unless an assessment clearly shows the land to be surplus to requirements, or the 
loss from the proposed development would be replaced by equivalent or better provision in 
terms of quantity or quality in a suitable location, or the development is for an alternative 
sports or recreational provision, the benefits of which clearly outweigh the loss of the current 
or former use.  
 
Policy SD46 of the Local Plan also seeks to protect sport facilities. 
 
Sport England initially objected to the proposal as it appeared to result in the loss of part of 
the sporting pitch. The objection included reference to a previous aerial photograph which 
indicated that the land had been formerly utilised as a rounders pitch. 
 
Supporting information was received during the course of the application. This included a 
topographical survey suggesting the unsuitability of the area of land for sports. Reference was 
made to improvement works to the Nicholson Field, as well as the land owned by the school 
at Penns Place suggesting that the playing field provision has not reduced or been 
compromised.  
 

Page 34



 

Sport England stated that they did not consider that the gradients shown on the topographical 
survey rendered the area of playing field unusable for sport. However, given the existing pitch 
layout and use of the playing field for a full range of sports, Sport England considered that 
there was no detrimental impact on the overall sporting capability of the site. Sports England 
are satisfied that this has been sufficiently demonstrated by the applicant. Sport England also 
noted that the proposal would improve accessibility to the playing field and sports facilities on 
site.  
 
On that basis, Sport England is content to withdraw its holding objection as the application 
was broadly considered capable of meeting a combination of their E2 and E3 exception 
policies: 
  
o E2 - the proposed development is for ancillary facilities supporting the principal use of the 
site as a playing field, and does not affect the quantity or quality of playing pitches or 
otherwise adversely affect their use.  
 
o E3 - The proposed development affects only land incapable of forming part of a playing 
pitch and does not:  
 
o reduce the size of any playing pitch;  
o result in the inability to use any playing pitch (including the maintenance of adequate safety 
margins and run-off areas);  
o reduce the sporting capacity of the playing field to accommodate playing pitches or the 
capability to rotate or reposition playing pitches to maintain their quality;  
o result in the loss of other sporting provision or ancillary facilities on the site  
or  
o prejudice the use of any part of a playing field and any of its playing pitches. 
As such, it is considered that the proposal would not lead to the unacceptable loss of playing 
fields / sports pitches. 
 
5. Highway Implications 
 
Policy SD19 of the Local Plan relates to 'transport and accessibility'. Policy SD22 states that 
all new and public parking provision should be of a location, scale and design that reflects its 

context. 
 
Concern had been raised initially by the proposal, as plans had indicated a 'one-way' traffic 
flow system that suggested many more vehicles would be exiting from the 'Love Lane access' 
(which is currently gated). The residents voiced particular concern regarding the narrowness 
of Love Lane, and its use by primary school children walking to school. The concern was 
mostly related to safety of the road users, in particular, junior school children. Amended plans 
changed the plans to show vehicular movements within the Churchers site as being two-way. 
 
Concern has been raised in representations as well as videos of construction traffic going to 
the site for the construction of the 'Goodfield Project' (the new Design & Technology, Music 
and English department, planning reference SDNP/18/04293/FUL). However, this is not part 
of this application. It is important to consider what would happen if this application were 
refused, and that would be that the construction traffic continues as before.  

Page 35



 

Furthermore, even if this application were refused, this would not prevent Churchers College 
from utilising the Love Lane access in a more intensive way. This is because it is an existing 
access, and there is no control over its use. 
 
Concern had also been raised that the proposal was increasing the number of available 
parking spaces across the site. Supporting documents were submitted indicating a re-
allocation of parking spaces across the site, and setting out that the overall number of spaces 
would stay the same as before. 
 
In the submission of further documents, the letter dated May 15th stated that the area marked 
A and A1 could be managed via existing bollards which would restrict parking for staff use 
and would only be used for events. The Highway Authority is satisfied that this could be 
controlled, and recommended that a Parking Management Plan would be secured by a 
suitably worded condition. This would ensure that the proposals would not result in an 
increase in the number of vehicles travelling to and from the site. 
 
A Parking Management Plan was received during the course of the application. (See 
Appendix A) This satisfied the Highway Authority that it contains suitable provisions to reduce 
the risk of conflict when egressing the Love Lane access and therefore no objection is raised 
to the planning application, subject to the Parking Management Plan being secured through a 
suitably worded condition. 

In summary, there is no objection from Hampshire County Highways, subject to the Parking 
Management Plan being secured by condition. 

 
6. Drainage Implications 
 
Policy SD22 states that all new and public parking provision should incorporate appropriate 
sustainable drainage systems. 
 
Policy SD49 states that ‘development proposals are required to reduce the impact and extent 
of all types of flooding through measures such as not increasing the risk of flooding elsewhere 
and, wherever possible, reducing overall flood risk’. 
 
Policy SD50 states that ‘development proposals will be permitted where they ensure that 
there is no net increase in surface water run-off, taking account of climate change’. 
 
The East Hampshire District Council Drainage Officer initially objected to the proposal. This is 
because ground conditions in this area are likely to be clay overlying sandstone, resulting in 
poor infiltration to ground, with overland flow affecting Love Lane. The proposals for the 
installation of a reinforced grass mesh system, and permanent parking were considered to be 
likely to exacerbate this problem. 
 
Further information was submitted in response to these issues, and an amendment was made 
to increase the sub-base to 250mm thick, resulting in increased storage within the car park, of 
which Drawing No 1905018-SK-01 Rev A now refers. In response to this, the Drainage Officer 
has removed his earlier objections, subject to construction being carried out in accordance 
with the revised details, which could be secured through a condition. 

Page 36



 

7. Ecosytems Services 
 
Policy SD2 (Ecosytem Services) seeks to get development proposals to have an overall 
positive impact on the ability of the natural environment to contribute goods and services. 
 
Details of proposed planting in response to policy SD2 were received during the course of the 
application.  
 
Some trees are proposed in the Quiet / Memorial Garden, and a hedge is proposed adjacent 
the parking area.  
 
This planting is to be welcomed as it would have an overall positive impact on the ability of 
the natural environment to contribute goods and services.  
 
If permission is granted, the proposed planting would be secured by condition. 
 
With the relevant conditions, the proposal would be in compliance with Policies SD2 and SD9 
of the Local Plan. 
 
 
8. Impact on the South Downs National Park 
 
The application site lies within the South Downs National Park (SDNP) and therefore the 
proposal is assessed in relation to its impact on the SDNP purposes. The SDNP has two 
statutory purposes; the first purpose is to conserve and enhance the natural beauty, wildlife 
and cultural heritage of the area and the second purpose is to promote opportunities for the 
understanding and enjoyment of the special qualities of the National Park by the public. 
 
The proposal would accord with the purposes of the SDNP. 
 
 
9.  Conclusion 
 
In summary, current highway issues caused by construction traffic cannot be dealt with in this 
application. Furthermore, regardless of historic use, the existing Love Lane access could be 
intensified in use at any time, without planning permission. If this application is granted, it 
would secure a parking management plan which would restrict the use of this gated access 
(albeit the parking management plan would not affect the flow of existing and future 
construction traffic). 
 
The proposal is considered to be acceptable as it would maintain a green aesthetic, would not 
detract from the character and appearance of the area, would not have an unacceptable 
impact on the amenities of neighbouring properties, nor would it significantly reduce the 
sporting capability of the site. It would be acceptable in highway terms, in accordance with the 
Parking Management Plan is adhered to. It would also be acceptable in drainage terms. As 
such, the proposal is in compliance with the relevant policies of the Petersfield 
Neighbourhood Plan and the South Downs National Park Local Plan. 
 

Page 37



 

 
10.  Reason for Recommendation and Conditions 
 
It is recommended that the application be Approved for the reasons and subject to the 
conditions set out below. 

1. The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of three years 
from the date of this permission. 

Reason – To comply with the provisions of Section 91 (1) of the Town and Country 
Planning Act 1990 (as amended)./ To comply with Section 51 of the Planning and 
Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 

2. All hard and soft landscape works shall be carried out in accordance with the approved 
details and in accordance with the recommendations of the appropriate British 
Standards or other recognised codes of good practice. These works shall be carried 
out in the first planting season after practical completion or first use of the 
development, whichever is earlier, unless otherwise first agreed in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority. Any trees or plants which, within a period of 5 years after planting, 
are removed, die or become seriously damaged or defective, shall be replaced as soon 
as is reasonably practicable with others of species, size and number as originally 
approved unless a suitable alternative species are otherwise agreed in writing by the 
Local Planning Authority. 

Reason – To protect and enhance biodiversity in accordance with Policies SD2 and 
SD9 of the emerging SDNP Local Plan. And, to ensure the provision and 
establishment of a reasonable standard of landscape in accordance with the approved 
designs. 

3. No external lighting/ floodlighting shall be installed on the site until such details have 
been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The lighting 
shall be installed, operated, and maintained in accordance with the approved details. 
Reason – In the interests of the amenity of the occupants of neighbouring properties 
and due to protection of the Dark Night Skies. 
Note: When submitting details for approval, it is requested that a report from a 
competent Lighting Professional is provided, confirming that the external lighting 
installation meets the Obtrusive Light Limitations for Exterior Lighting Installations for 
Environmental Zone (to be specified for the circumstances) as set out in the “Guidance 
Notes for the Reduction of Obtrusive Light GN01:2011” issued by the Institute of 
Lighting Professionals. 

 
4. The existing western boundary hedge of the site shall be retained thereafter. 

Reason – To ensure an appropriate standard of visual amenity in the area and to 
safeguard the privacy and amenities of the residents of the locality. 

 
5. The development shall be carried out and operated thereafter in strict accordance with 

the approved Parking Management Plan. 
Reason – In the interests of highway safety. 

 

Page 38



 

6. The development shall be carried out in accordance with the approved drainage 
details before any part of the development is first brought into use and shall be 
retained thereafter. 
Reason – To ensure adequate provision for drainage. 

 
7. Approved Plans 
The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the plans 
listed below under the heading “Plans Referred to in Consideration of this Application”. 
Reason – For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper planning. 

 
 
 
11.  Crime and Disorder Implications  
11.1 It is considered that the proposal does not raise any crime and disorder implications.  
 
12.  Human Rights Implications  
12.1 This planning application has been considered in light of statute and case law and any 
interference with an individual’s human rights is considered to be proportionate to the aims 
sought to be realised.  
 
13.  Equality Act 2010  
13.1 Due regard has been taken of the South Downs National Park Authority’s equality duty 
as contained within the Equality Act 2010.  
 
 
14.  Proactive Working  
The applicants were updated of issues throughout the course of the application, and given 
opportunity to address them. 

 

Background Documents  

 

 

Appendix 1 – Plans Referred to in Consideration of this Application 

 

The application has been assessed and recommendation is made on the basis of the 
following plans and documents submitted: 

Plan Type Reference Version Date on Plan Status 

 

Application Form -    29.03.2019 Approved 

 

Page 39



 

Application Documents – CIL – additional 
information 

  29.03.2019 Approved 

 

Plans – Existing and proposed plans L2947A1-010 REV1 29.03.2019 Superseded 

 

Plans – Existing & Proposed Plans L2947A1-010 REV3 21.05.2019 Approved 

 

Plans – Proposed Drainage Strategy 1905018-SK-01 A 23.05.2019 Approved 

 

Miscellaneous – Terram Bodpave 85  

Celluar porus pavers with castellated cells 
(Product Data Sheet) 

  16.05.2019 Approved 

 

Miscellaneous – Bodpave 85 Paving Grids 
– Specification, design and installation 
guidance for grassed surfaces. 

  16.05.2019 Approved 

 

Miscellaneous – Quick Storage Calcs   16.05.2019 Approved 

 

Miscellaneous – Porous Car Park Calcs 
(combined) 

  16.05.2019 Approved 

 

Miscellaneous – Supporting Commentary 
and Explanation re Planning Consultation 
Feedback from Sport England (date: 15th 
May 2019) 

  16.05.2019 Approved 

 

Miscellaneous – Combined Geotechnical 
and Ground Contamination Risk 
Assessment Report (dated 27th June 2018, 
Ashdown Site Investigation Limited). 

  16.05.2019 Approved 

 

Page 40



 

Miscellaneous – Supporting Commentary 
and Explanation re Planning Consultation 
Feedback including Highways, Neighbour 
and Local Community Responses (dated 
15th May 2019) 

  16.05.2019 Approved 

 

Miscellaneous – Supporting Commentary 
and Explanation re Case Officer Questions 
from 16 May 19 

  21.05.2019 Approved 

 

Miscellaneous – Supporting Commentary 
and Explanation re Sports England 
Comments dated 20 May 2019 

  23.05.2019 Approved 

 

Plans – Existing plan with levels A1-011 00 23.05.2019 Approved 

 

Miscellaneous – Supporting Commentary 
and Explanation re Hampshire Highways 
Response Letter dated 31 May 2019 

  07.06.2019 Approved 

 

Miscellaneous – Parking Management Plan 
for Love Lane West Vehicle Gates 

  05.08.2019 Approved 

 

Miscellaneous – Annotated site picture 
showing planning planting scheme detail 
with target dates (21.11.19) 

  25.11.2019 Approved 

 

Miscellaneous – Annotated site pictures 
showing poor condition of temporary grass 
block solution to evidence need for a 
permanent solution with sub base per 
application detail. (Pics dated 22 Nov 
2019). 

  25.11.2019 Approved 

 

Reasons: For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper planning.  

Page 41



 

Part 2 Item 1, Churchers College, Ramshill, Petersfield 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 

Proposed layout plan 
 
 

  

Page 42



 

Appendix A  

 

Page 43



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	 
	6. Future Items
	7.(i) 21068/045/VOC/SAW - Alton Sports Centre, Chawton Park Road, Alton, GU34 1ST
	8.(i) SDNP/19/01538/FUL - Churchers College, Ramshill, Petersfield

